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Brief Building History of 503 Middlesex Avenue, Metuchen  

(Block 117, Lots 64 and 65) 

Current Metuchen Fire Department building 

 

The one-story building at 503 Middlesex Avenue in Metuchen, New Jersey was completed in 

1914 by T.M. Barr for John C. Bowers’ “Metuchen Automobile & Garage Company.”  It 

currently serves as the headquarters for the Metuchen Fire Department. 

 

Mr. Bowers had an earlier location for his Metuchen business in a concrete garage nearby, 

which, according to editions of Horseless Age, he opened towards the end of 1909.  The 

construction of the building at 503 Middlesex Avenue was to expansion his business from his 

smaller location on Highland Avenue near Main Street.  A 1914 issue of Horseless Age and local 

news reports note that there were objections to the establishment of Mr. Bowers’ garage in this 

new location, and that some property owers filed objections which had eventually been overruled 

by the court.  This move to Middlesex Avenue may have also been linked to a desire to be 

located on newly designated Lincoln Highway (established 1913).  Named in honor of President 

Lincoln, this was the first transcontinental automobile road and runs through Metuchen as 

Middlesex Avenue, Route 27, and the Lincoln Highway.  It was designated as a route from 

Times Square in New York City to California, and was intended for pleasure touring.  As a 

result, many roadside businesses were constructed along its route during these early years in 

support of its many anticipated travelers.   

 

The original 50’ by 100’ building was constructed between September 1913 and March 1914, 

delayed due to the local opposition to a garage being located in a residential neighborhood.  An 

addition that took place between 1914 and 1920 doubled the size of the structure and resulted in 

the twin gables of stepped parapets along the front façade. 

 

The building at 503 Middlesex Avenue first appears on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps of 

Metuchen in 1920; the earlier edition in 1910 shows the property as undeveloped and adjacent to 

the Washington Hose Company Fire House (earlier historic maps of Metuchen also show the site 

as undeveloped).  Details included on the 1920 map indicate that the building, which appears in 

its current configuration of two sections each with a front gable roof, was constructed of hollow 

tile with nine skylights/roof vents, steam heat, electric light, and had the capacity for 50 cars.  

Also noted are four 500 gallon gasoline tanks buried in the roadway along the front elevation.   

 

City directories of Metuchen list Mr. Bowers as operating a garage in this location through at 

least 1940.  By 1949, as shown on the Sanborn Fire Insurance maps for that year, the building 

was in use as a municipal garage.  Within at least the next year or two, the building also began to 

be used by the Borough’s two fire companies, the Eagle Hook and Ladder Company and the 

Washington Hose Company.  Both of these volunteer fire companies had been established many 

years earlier, (1882 and 1897, respectively) and were housed in small firehouses they had 

constructed for their companies (in 1885 and 1905, also respectively). 

 

In 1953, the Metuchen Borough Council, under the leadership of Mayor Joseph Costa, voted to 

renovate the old garage for use by the two fire companies.  The plan, drafted by Pierson and 

MacWilliams, Architects, included an entirely new front façade, additional floor space, a 

recreation room, showers, and refinished walls and ceiling. 
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The local newspaper, the Metuchen Recorder, documented a fair amount of opposition to the 

plan to renovate the old borough garage for this purpose.  Opponents indicated that the estimates 

for the work continued to grow and that the condition of the existing structure was in very poor 

condition.   During a Borough Council meeting in April 1953, one resident called the proposal “a 

little bit of icing on a stale cake.”  Mayor Costa countered that the $48,000 expenditure was cost-

effective and the best thing for the department, and that remodeling of the building would also 

eliminate the “eyesore” that the old garage had become.  Costa also stated that “when this work 

is done, we’ll have a building we can be proud of – and one that should last 40 to 50 years.”  

Opposition to the plan, based on the assertion that the existing building would only need 

additional costly repairs as time went on, continued to be voiced as well as the recommendation 

that an entirely new facility located elsewhere in the borough should be constructed. 

 

However, the council did pass the measure and it seems like there were several factors leading 

into the decision at the time, including development pressures including major commercial 

changes along Main Street, Menlo Park mall being planned nearby, and very expensive school 

expansions.  The local papers were also full of concerns about the volume of traffic and 

pedestrian conditions, and it seems that citizens and council were dealing with a great number of 

changes in and around the borough.  Within the next couple of months, however, the council 

itself underwent a great change as several from the opposing political party were elected to 

office.  One of the most vocal opponents of the renovation, Karl E. Metzger, was elected Mayor.  

By this time, however, the renovation had been completed. 

 

While changes to the interior have clearly taken place, the exterior footprint of building is nearly 

the same as it was upon the completion of the renovation in 1953.  However, its façade is heavily 

altered and very few, if any, original architectural features remain from its construction as an 

automobile garage along the Lincoln Highway.  The original rusticated stone front façade, with 

its twin stepped parapets, was significantly altered as part of the 1953 renovation, and all the 

front bays were reworked to accommodate fire engines.  A quick inspection of the interior shows 

that little or no original historic features remain inside. 

 

The following pages maps, photos, and images come primarily from the archives of the 

Metuchen-Edison Historical Society. 

 

1910 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map (excerpt) 
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March, 1914 article from a New Brunswick newspaper 
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Detail, March, 1914 article from a New Brunswick newspaper 

 

 
 

 

1914 Edition of American Machinist 
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Photograph on file in the archives of the Metuchen-Edison Historical Society of 

the Washington Hose Company, dated 1921.  Note the signage, façade, and 

sidewalls of the building in the left side of the image. 

 

1920 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map (excerpt) 



Tyreen Reuter, January 26, 2015, Revised July 2023  Page 6 of 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Undated photograph on file in the Metuchen Fire Department archives.  The original façade of 

the building at 503 Middlesex Avenue is in the background behind the ladder truck. 

  

1929 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map (excerpt) 
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Metuchen Recorder, April 9, 1953 

 

1949 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map (excerpt) 
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Metuchen Recorder, April 16, 1953 

 
 

Metuchen Recorder, May 7, 1953 
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Metuchen Recorder, May 1953 

 

 
 

Continued on next page 
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Metuchen Recorder, May 21, 1953 
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Photographs shared with the Metuchen-Edison Historical Society.  Undated, but appear to show 

the municipal garage being renovated into the Metuchen Fire House, therefore ca. 1953 
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November 5, 1953 Metuchen Recorder 

 

 
Photograph on file in the Metuchen Fire Department archives showing the November 7, 1953 

festivities inside the newly renovated building. 
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Photograph on file in the Metuchen Fire Department archives showing the November 7, 1953 

festivities inside the newly renovated building. 

 

 

 

 
Ca. 1955 photograph on file in the archives of the Metuchen-Edison Historical Society. 
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1972 photograph on file in the archives of the Metuchen-Edison Historical Society. 

 
 

 

  

1959 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map (excerpt) 
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1978 photograph on file in the archives of the Metuchen-Edison Historical Society. 

 
 

 

2014 Google Earth image of the Metuchen Volunteer Fire Department 

 
 

Current Tax Map/Location 


